
Notice of Meeting

Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee

Date: Wednesday 17 October 2018

Time: 5.30 am

Venue: Conference Room 1, Beech Hurst, Weyhill Road, Andover, 
Hampshire SP10 3AJ

For further information or enquiries please contact:
Caroline Lovelock - 01264 368014
clovelock@testvalley.gov.uk

Legal and Democratic Service
Test Valley Borough Council,

Beech Hurst, Weyhill Road,
Andover, Hampshire,

SP10 3AJ
www.testvalley.gov.uk

The recommendations contained in the Agenda are made by the Officers and these 
recommendations may or may not be accepted by the Committee.

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION SCHEME
If members of the public wish to address the meeting they should notify the 
Legal and Democratic Service at the Council's Beech Hurst office by noon 

on the working day before the meeting.

Public Document Pack

http://www.testvalley.gov.uk/


Membership of Overview and Scrutiny Committee

MEMBER WARD

Councillor I Jeffrey (Chairman) Dun Valley;

Councillor J Cockaday (Vice-Chairman) Andover (St Mary's);

Councillor G Bailey Blackwater;

Councillor D Baverstock Romsey (Cupernham);

Councillor C Borg-Neal Andover (Harroway);

Councillor P Boulton Broughton & Stockbridge;

Councillor C Dowden North Baddesley;

Councillor B Few Brown Amport;

Councillor A Finlay Chilworth, Nursling & Rownhams;

Councillor K Hamilton Andover (Harroway);

Councillor I Hibberd Romsey Extra;

Councillor P Hurst Romsey (Tadburn);

Councillor J Lovell Andover (Winton);

Councillor P Mutton Penton Bellinger;

Councillor J Neal Andover (Millway);

Councillor T Preston Andover (Alamein);

Councillor I Richards Romsey (Abbey);

Councillor C Thom Valley Park;

Test Valley Borough Council - Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 17 October 2018



Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Wednesday 17 October 2018

AGENDA

The order of these items may change as a result of members
of the public wishing to speak

1  Apologies

2  Public Participation

3  Declarations of Interest

4  Urgent Items

5  Minutes of the meeting held on 19 September 2018

6  Call in Items

7  Urgent decisions taken since last meeting

8  Updates on Panels

Lead Members to update the Committee on the progress 
of their Panels (10 mins)

9  The Annual Internal Audit Report 2017- 18 5 - 9

To provide an overview of the internal audit work covering 
the financial year 2017-18 (20 mins)

10  Drug prevention services in the Test Valley 10 - 12

Report on the provision of drug support services in Test 
Valley (20 minutes)

Test Valley Borough Council - Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 17 October 2018



11  Public Involvement Panel Final Report 13 - 19

To consider the findings from the Public Involvement 
Panel and bring forward a proposed action plan to enable 
the Council to continue to strengthen its approach to 
engaging and involving communities and the public more 
effectively (20 minutes)

12  Work Programme Report 20 - 25

To enable Members to keep the Committee’s future work 
programme under review (10 minutes)

Test Valley Borough Council - Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 17 October 2018



The Annual Internal Audit Report 2017-18

Report of the Shared Internal Audit Manager  (Portfolio: Finance)

Recommended: 

That the work performed by the internal audit team over the previous year (April 
2017 - March 2018) be endorsed.

SUMMARY: 

This report provides an overview of the internal audit work covering the financial 
year 2017-18.

1 Introduction 

1.1 Members of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee have requested an Annual 
Internal Audit Report. This paper is based on the reports provided by the 
Shared Internal Manager to the Audit Panel in this period.

1.2 In this period there have been four Audit Panel meetings:
 12th June 2017
 21st September 2017
 6th December 2017
 12th March 2018

2 Opinion on the Overall Adequacy and Effectiveness of the Council’s 
Internal Control Environment

2.1 Throughout the year an internal audit monitoring statement for the period was 
provided to Members of the Audit Panel. In addition, other reports to the  Panel, 
covered statutory reports from External Audit, the effectiveness of the Audit 
Panel (self assessment), and a paper in respect of the draft annual governance 
statement.

The overall opinion of the Internal Audit Partnership Manager (as reported to the 
June 2018 Audit Panel meeting)  is that a substantial level of assurance can 
be given that there is a generally sound system of internal control, designed to 
meet the Council’s objectives, and that controls are being applied consistently.

2.2 The assurance opinions relating to the 26 audits (where an opinion had been 
given) are summarised as follows:

Test Valley Borough Council - Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 17 October 2018

Page 5

ITEM 9



Opinion Number Percentage
Full Assurance 4 15%
Substantial Assurance 19 73%
Limited Assurance 3 12%
No Assurance 0 0%

The Audits that received a limited opinion were as follows:
 Lone Working
 The Sports Academy
 Garden Waste

2.3 73% (27 of the 37 programmed audits) of the original audit plan was delivered to 
final or draft report stage against a target of 95% as at 31 March 2018. A further 
14% (5 audits) were in progress. 14% (5 of the programmed audits have been 
deferred to the 2018/19 Audit Plan as approved by the Audit Panel in March 
2018. Therefore, after revising the audit plan the team delivered 84% (27 of the 
amended target 32 audits).

2.4 The team achieved 69.42% productive time against a target of 90% for the period 
1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018. The below target productive rate reflects the 
reduced in-house resource availability predominantly within the Senior Auditor 
role with recruitment difficulties, turnover, long term sickness absence by a 
former member of the team and the retirement of a part time auditor. 

2.5 All actions arising from audit reports are agreed with the management 
responsible for the area/function. These actions are monitored by each Service’s 
Performance Board and recorded on the performance management system. A 
review of the system was undertaken to ascertain the status of audit actions as at 
31/03/18. The results are summarised in the table and narrative below:

Audit Actions: Risk: Total: Complete: In Progress: Pending: 

2016-17 High 2 1 (50%) 1 (50%) 0 (0%)

Med/Low 78 65 (83%) 9 (12%) 4 (5%)

2017-18 High 1 1 (100%) 0 (0%) 0 (0%)

Med/Low 27 10 (37%) 11 (41%) 6 (22%)

Grand Total 108 77 21 10

2.6 14 actions arising from the 2016-17 audit reviews remained in progress or had 
slipped. 5 including the high risk action have since been addressed. The 
remaining actions include:

- Member and Mayoral Allowances and Expenses audit (2 actions). These 
refer to the authorisation of the payment spreadsheet and confirmation of 
the quotes obtained for market testing of the provision of mayoral 
transport.

Test Valley Borough Council - Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 17 October 2018

Page 6



- Safeguarding audit (1 action). This is awaiting confirmation of the 
completion of role descriptions for posts requiring a DBS (Disclosure 
Barring Service) check.

- Disabled Facilities Grants audit (1 action), which is pending approval of the 
revised Private Housing Renewal Policy.

- IT Benefits Delivery audit (1 action). This involves the development of a 
catalogue that could be used to inform any future discussions exploring the 
involvement of other IT partners and is currently ongoing.  

- Premises Security audit (3 actions). These include a review of the 
management reporting functionality from the building security system and 
access cards which is in progress.

- Creditors System audit (1 action). Although fit for purpose, this action 
refers to a review of the authorisation records for system access 
permissions. 

2.7 17 actions arising from the 2017-18 audit reviews to date were in progress or 
had slipped. None were high risk. 5 have subsequently been completed. The 
remaining actions include:

- Asset Management audit (2 actions).  These refer to property condition 
surveys and risk assessments. Although there is a formalised regime for 
conducting condition surveys every 5 years a “rolling” programme is being 
developed and work is in progress to conduct the first phase of M&E 
condition surveys to provide up to date and comprehensive risk 
assessments.

- Bank charges audit (1 action). This relates to the reconciliation of 
transaction volumes to the fees and charges. The best way to gather and 
format this information from the various financial systems is currently under 
review.

- IT Procurement audit (1 action). This action refers to the review of the 
Council’s Multi functional Devices for photocopying. A joint procurement 
exercise is currently underway with Winchester City Council.

- Performance Management audit (3 actions). These have been addressed 
but remain open for confirmation.

- Programme and Project Management audit (1 action). This relates to 
considering the extension of the Corporate Dashboard process to Officers 
Management Team summarising progress on the Corporate Projects. 

- Sports Academy audit (1 action). This relates to the updating and 
agreement of the inventory. This has since been provided to the Council 
and is pending review and inspection prior to agreement.

Test Valley Borough Council - Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 17 October 2018

Page 7



- Treasury Management audit (1 action). This relates to the review of 
Practice Notes to ensure these reflect the requirements of the revised 
Treasury Management Code of Practice for Public Services 2017.

- Valley Housing audit (2 actions). These refer to the production of a written 
Recharge Methodology and confirming the secure retention of the signed 
agreements. A methodology has been agreed and is in place, a written 
policy is to be produced for the 2019/20 budget process. A revised due 
date for this action is now 31/12/18.  

2.8 All those actions that are in progress and slipped/pending will be followed up 
during the year by the Service Performance Boards and by Internal Audit to 
ensure that control weaknesses are properly addressed.

2.9 Internal Audit Progress 2018/19 to August 2018:

2.10 Since 1st April 2018, the Internal Audit function has made reasonable progress 
against the Annual Audit Plan 2018/19 which was approved by the Audit Panel 
on 12th March 2018.

2.11 Of the 9 audits reported to the Audit Panel as complete in September 2018, 3 
were given a full assurance opinion and 6 substantial assurance. There are 38 
programmed audits within the 2018/19 Audit plan of which 10 audits (26%) 
had been completed or were at draft report stage as at 17th August 2018.  A 
further 5 (13%) programmed audits were in progress.

3 Corporate Objectives and Priorities

3.1 The work of the Internal Audit Function supports the Council’s four strategic 
aims for maintaining and improving quality of life in Test Valley, by ensuring 
that the Council makes the most of its available resources and transforms the 
way it works, to provide even better value for money and effective service 
delivery.

4 Consultation/Communications 

4.1 The Internal Audit Plan for 2017/18 involved full consultation with senior 
management, the Council’s External Auditors and the Audit Panel.

5 Options

5.1 In accordance with best professional practice, currently the Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards, each year a plan is produced and internal audit 
resources allocated to the areas of the Council’s activity which need to be 
reviewed during the year.

5.2 The Council has limited options in this matter as without this the Council is at 
risk of providing inadequate audit coverage on high-risk areas and no 
assurance on the control environment.

Test Valley Borough Council - Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 17 October 2018

Page 8



6 Risk Management

The annual audit plan 2017/18 was based on the Council’s risk registers and 
Internal Audit contributes towards the overall corporate governance framework 
of assurance.

7 Resource Implications

7.1 The Audit Plan for 2017/18 was based on 2.4 full time equivalent auditors 
employed by Test Valley Borough Council and 0.4 full time of an Audit 
Manager’s time provided in partnership with Gosport Borough Council 
(extended three years to March 2020).

8 Equality Issues

8.1 The report is for information purposes, so the Council’s EQIA process does 
not need to be applied.

9 Conclusion

9.1 The review of the effectiveness of Internal Audit has shown that there is 
substantial compliance with the Standards detailed in the Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards 2013.

9.2 This report outlines the work undertaken by Internal Audit from 1 April 2017 to 
31 March 2018 and the overall performance in delivery of the 2017-18 Audit 
Plan. It also provides a summary of the work undertaken to August 2018 on 
the delivery of the 2018/19 Audit Plan. 

Background Papers (Local Government Act 1972 Section 100D)
None

Confidentiality  
It is considered that this report does not contain exempt information within the 
meaning of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended, and can 
be made public.

No of Annexes: Nil

Author: Chris Davis Ext: 8237

File Ref:

Report to: Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee

Date: 17 October 2018

Test Valley Borough Council - Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 17 October 2018

Page 9



Drug Prevention Services in Test Valley

Report of the Community Development Manager (on behalf of the Test Valley 
Partnership)

Recommended:

Report to be noted and partnership approach be endorsed.

SUMMARY: 

 OSCOM has previously requested a report on the provision of drug support 
services in Test Valley in order to understand the multi-agency support 
available in the borough for people with drug dependency

 Drug support services for Young People and Adults in the Test Valley are 
commissioned by Hampshire County Council

 These services work with other agencies, including TVBC, Police and others, 
to support and advise local multi-agency partnerships dealing with all aspects 
and impacts of drug related matters. 

Background 

1.1 The provision of support services for those with a drug dependency within 
Test Valley is the responsibility of, Hampshire County Council. Currently, 
these services are operated by Inclusion, for adults; and Catch-22 for young 
people, each of whom report directly to HCC. Where drug related issues arise 
in a criminal justice context, these would be the responsibility of the Police to 
investigate. 

1.2 We are aware that HCC have recently concluded a consultation process into 
the future provision of these (and other) services. However, we have not yet 
been made aware of the outcome of this process as it relates to addiction 
support services, nor of any formal proposals for the future. Context

1.3 Inclusion are part of the ‘Specialist Services Group’ of Midland Partnership 
NHS Foundation Trust which provides services including advice, information, 
harm reduction interventions, and recovery planning in conjunction with a 
range of pharmacological, psychosocial and structured treatment programs 
using peer mentors and volunteers.

1.4 Catch-22 deliver a community engagement based service with universal, 
targeted and specialist substance misuse services exclusively for young 
people up to 25 years of age. They provide early intervention, education and 
specialist treatment to enable young people to make informed choices and 
reduce the impact of substance misuse, both on the individual and wider 
community. 

Test Valley Borough Council - Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 17 October 2018

Page 10

ITEM 10



1.5 For those under 18 they provide a joint approach using designated CAMHS 
[Child and Adolescent Mental Health Service] Link Practitioners, and in 
partnerships with agencies such as youth offending, children’s services, youth 
support, education. For those over 18, they offer a transitional service 
supported by nurses, doctors, social work qualified workers and clinical leads.

1.6 Support services available to residents of Test Valley via these schemes 
include a 24/7 emergency crisis line for young people; specialist harm 
reduction services; individual tailored care plans and assessments; family 
support; access to prescribing and needle exchange and one-to-one and 
group interventions within educational settings. Referrals can be made directly 
to these schemes, or via formal multi-agency partnerships as applicable. 

1.7 Where individuals are known to the relevant agency, and whom may also 
have drug dependency issues, cases can be referred to the ‘Community Multi-
Agency Risk Assessment Conference’ [C-MARAC]. This process allows for all 
agencies involved with the individual concerned to assess their wider needs 
and to create peer and support plans to help address these. Where relevant 
these case conferences are attended by these support agencies where 
possible, or updates are provided and actions tasked to them. These groups 
also provide specific advice to other agencies and a signposting process to 
find the services required for each case. The plans will allocate a lead agency 
for each as to ensure there are assessed and monitored towards a positive 
outcome. These lead agencies could be one of these support services, or 
where applicable the cases may be referred to one of these schemes directly 
for appropriate intervention or support. The C-MARAC’s meet monthly in both 
Andover and Romsey and will make referrals to the relevant branch of the 
schemes.

1.8 A referral to a support service can be made as a positive requirement of 
various formal orders and interventions. For example, where a young person 
receives an order from the Youth Offending Team, where substance misuse 
as been identified as a factor, the individual concerned will be referred to 
Catch-22 services as a requirement of this process. Other orders such as 
Community Protection Notices or Criminal Behaviour Orders can also include 
requirements to accept help.

1.9 In addition, other community safety and criminal justice avenues exist for 
addressing issues of drug usage, dealing and related harm, such as Operation 
Fortress/Bastille, and Operation Lynx. The latter works to support young 
people at risk of becoming involved in drugs use or dealing. Such operations 
also look to address issues of transient drug dealing and ‘cuckooing’, where 
dealers take over the property of vulnerable individuals, often drug users, to 
secure the property to deal from locally. These support agencies also form 
part of these operations, and can help provide a link for information and advice 
to be provided to users by a trustworthy source, and for information to be 
passed back as applicable. The criminal justice response to these issues 
would vary dependant upon circumstance’s and levels, and could range from 
rehabilitation support to prosecution.

Test Valley Borough Council - Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 17 October 2018

Page 11



1.10 Other services also help support those with drug related issues alongside 
where other issues such as homelessness and mental health also exist, 
including Mind, Two Saints and Society of St James, and also across multi-
agency partnerships with these specialist schemes. However in all cases, it 
requires the substance user to voluntarily engage in the process at each 
stage.

1.11 Drug related offences in Test Valley are recorded as being lower than the 
average for the Hampshire Force area, and comparable to rates recorded in 
similar demographic local areas.

2 Conclusion

2.1 As referenced in paragraph 1.2 – HCC is currently reviewing services for drug 
dependency in Hampshire.  As and when we know more about the outcome 
from this we will bring a report forward (as necessary).

Background Papers (Local Government Act 1972 Section 100D)
None.

Confidentiality
It is considered that this report does not contain exempt information within the 
meaning of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended, and can 
be made public.

No of Annexes: None 

Author: Andrew Pilley Ext: 8640

File Ref:

Report to: OSCOM Date: 17 October 2018

Test Valley Borough Council - Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 17 October 2018

Page 12



Public Involvement Panel Final Report

Report of the Chairman of the Panel, Cllr Dorothy Baverstock  
(Portfolio: Leader of the Council)                     

Recommended: 
That the proposed action plan (annex 1) emanating from the Public 
Involvement Review is endorsed ready for onward submission to Cabinet. 

SUMMARY: 

 A Panel appointed by Overview and Scrutiny Committee (OSCOM) undertook a 
review into public involvement, which reflected on the progress the Council has 
made over recent years to engage and involve communities and the public more 
effectively in informing decision making. This report sets out how the review 
findings will be put into practice as part of the Council’s approach to 
strengthening public involvement.    

1 Introduction  

1.1 In autumn 2017, OSCOM appointed a panel to undertake a review of public 
involvement. The Panel explored how the Council could build upon its strong 
track record of engaging communities and involving the public in the most 
effective way. 

1.2 The Panel was chaired by Cllr Dorothy Baverstock and also included Cllr C. 
Dowden, Cllr Thom, Cllr Neal and Cllr Boulton. As a result of the review, the 
Panel sought to evaluate the approach taken by the Council, and identify 
future areas for further development. 

1.3 OSCOM considered the findings from the panel at its meeting on 21 March 
2018. It was agreed that the proposals that formed the report would be 
developed further by the Member and Community Development working group 
which is chaired by the Leader of the Council and then be reported back to the 
committee for onward submission to Cabinet. 

1.4 This report sets out how the review findings will be put into practice as part of 
the Council’s approach to strengthening public involvement.    

2 Background 

2.1 The Panel undertook the review from the premise that public involvement 
forms an implicit part of the work of a “community councillor”. The scope of the 
review therefore focused on how councillors can more effectively engage with 
all parts of their community to inform decision making. 

Test Valley Borough Council - Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 17 October 2018

Page 13

ITEM 11



2.2 The Panel considered four areas namely: 

(a) A place-based approach to public involvement.
(b) The changing role of the Councillor as an advocate and facilitator within 

communities and communicating and involving the public through 
targeted approaches to ensure the widest range of views are heard. 

(c) The changing context for councillors resulting from the emerging digital 
landscape and the role it can play in engaging the public and the new 
demands and opportunities this brings with it. 

(d) Future skills required for councillors. 

2.3 At its meeting on 21 March 2018, OSCOM resolved that the proposals 
contained within the report be referred to the Member and Community 
Development working group for further development. This was done on the 
basis that a lot of what was contained within the proposals falls within the 
scope and remit of the working group.  

2.4 The Member and Community Development working group is chaired by the 
Leader of the Council and includes Cllr C. Dowden who was also member of 
the panel. Its role is to develop the Council’s approach to member 
development, community engagement and place-based working. 

3 Review of proposals identified by the panel 

3.1 The Member and Community Development working group reviewed the 
proposals emanating from the review and sought to explore how they could be 
practically implemented. The working group, which is chaired by the Leader of 
the Council, commended and endorsed the work of the panel. They felt that 
the proposals that had been put forward would play an important role in further 
strengthening the Council’s approach to public involvement.  

3.2 As a result, a draft action plan has been prepared (annex 1) which has 
developed the proposals into specific areas of action. If endorsed by OSCOM 
and Cabinet, the actions will form a part of the onward work programme for the 
Member and Community Development working group. 

4 Corporate Objectives and Priorities 

4.1 Engaging with and involving the public forms an important part of the 
evidence-base that councillors and the council’s services use to shape the 
Corporate Plan and its delivery through the Corporate Action Plan. The review 
and the subsequent actions that have been developed relate to all four 
corporate priorities. 

4.2 Priority 4 which is about investing in a great place to “Contribute and be part of 
a strong community”, places a focus on local democracy to ensure all views 
are heard by strengthening the knowledge and skills of local councillors to 
enable them to work with communities on the things that matter most to 
residents. The actions identified will play an important part in the onward 
development of the Community Councillor role. 

Test Valley Borough Council - Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 17 October 2018

Page 14



5 Consultations/Communications 

5.1 The Panel engaged with a variety of stakeholders through the Council’s 
involvement in the national Voice of the Councillor events, considered case 
studies based on the experiences of councillors within the borough and used 
feedback gathered as part of the OSCOM roundtable with the Leader focusing 
on the engagement of the public in the development of the next Corporate 
Plan.  

6 Resource Implications 

6.1 None directly arising from this report. 

7 Legal Implications 

7.1 None directly arising from this report. 

8 Equality Issues  

8.1 None arising directly from this report. 

9 Other Issues

9.1 Wards/Communities Affected – All 

10 Conclusion 

10.1 The Public Involvement Panel identified a number of proposals which could 
help the Council continue to strengthen its approach to public involvement. 
The Member and Community Development Working Group has endorsed 
these proposals and developed an action plan for how they can be 
implemented in a practical way. Subject to OSCOM endorsing the proposed 
actions the plan will then be ready for onward submission to Cabinet. 

Background Papers (Local Government Act 1972 Section 100D)

Confidentiality  
It is considered that this report does not contain exempt information within the 
meaning of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended, and can 
be made public.

No of Annexes: 1

Author: James Moody – Policy 
Manager

Ext: 8130

File Ref:

Report to: OSCOM Date: 17 October 2018

Test Valley Borough Council - Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 17 October 2018

Page 15



Annex 1: Public Involvement Panel – Draft Action Plan 

The following action plan will form part of the onward work programme for the Member and Community Development working 
group. 

Action Commentary Timescales
Undertake a review of ward and parish 
profiles 

A project to update Ward and Parish profiles is currently being 
established to provide new profiles in time for the new Council in 
2019. The project will require the profiles to reflect the new warding 
arrangements and work is underway to develop the new datasets 
that are needed as a result. 

Ward Profiles 
October 2018 -
May 2019

Parish Profiles – 
Autumn 2019

Develop Councillors understanding of 
the use of customer insight information 
and how they can practically use it as a 
tool to involve and engage with 
residents. 

Customer Insight provides information on behavioural characteristics 
and communication preferences of residents and communities. It is 
proposed that this information will be presented within the new Ward 
Profiles but will also form part of the resource pack that members 
will receive as part of their “Community Councillor” induction. 

June 2019

Undertake an evaluation of the different 
approaches used to engage people in 
the Andover Vision and Romsey Future 
processes.

The Member and Community Development Group will develop a 
scope for the evaluation with a view to taking the project forward in 
early 2019. The project will provide an opportunity to share practice 
and be a good way to explore lessons learned with partners. It is 
proposed that the evaluation is broadened to draw in lessons from 
community planning initiatives in the rural areas of the borough 
which can then be used to update the Council’s Community 
Planning Toolkit. 

Spring 2019 

T
est V

alley B
orough C

ouncil - O
verview

 and S
crutiny C

om
m

ittee - 17 O
ctober 2018

P
age 16



Develop a new Member Development 
Strategy to shape the future induction 
and training programme for councillors, 
with particular focus on how they can 
best be supported in taking forward the 
role of being a community councillor.



The Member and Community Development Group have commenced 
work on the creation of a new Member Development Strategy. The 
Strategy will outline the Council’s commitment to give all Members 
the opportunity to develop their skills to undertake the various 
aspects of their role as Councillor. 

The Member and Community Development Group have started work 
on shaping the Members Induction Programme for 2019. Building on 
feedback received from Members, the programme will seek to 
ensure that sessions are interactive in their nature and spread over 
a longer period of time. The role of the Community Councillor and 
Members Development will form key sessions in the 2019 induction 
programme.  

October 2018- 
May 2019

October 2018 – 
September 2019 

Strengthen relationships with 
representative interest-groups such as 
the disability forum, older people’s 
forums, and youth groups to develop 
mechanisms in which they can be 
engaged at the right point in collecting 
evidence to inform decisions.   

Corporate Plan -  Disability focus Workshops 

2nd Democracy Day – Test Valley School 

The development of the new Corporate Plan has provided, and will 
continue to provide through its development and delivery many 
opportunities to engage with representative interest groups.  Over 
this summer sessions took place with young people, older people 
and groups such as the disability forum. 

September 2018

November 2018

Ongoing 

Building on the work of Cllr Cockaday’s 
OSCOM Review into Communication 
and Procurement, explore ways in 
which Councillors can have greater 
information and briefings on key issues 
through drop-in sessions and the 
Members Information Bulletin so that 

The recommendations and learning resulting from Cllr Cockaday’s 
Review have become business as usual. The use of Member Drop 
ins have become a valuable route in which to enhance 
communication and brief members on key issues and topics. Recent 
examples include the Community Governance Review, Corporate 
Plan and the LGA Peer Challenge.   

Ongoing 

T
est V

alley B
orough C

ouncil - O
verview

 and S
crutiny C

om
m

ittee - 17 O
ctober 2018

P
age 17



they are able to inform, engage and 
involve residents in the most 
appropriate way
OSCOM identifies key issues from its 
work programme that it would like 
councillors to engage with communities 
on and gather insights from in order to 
inform committee discussions. To 
explore whether this could also be 
promoted through video and social 
media

To be agreed annually as part of the OSCOM work programme 
following the OSCOM Away day. 

To form a key part of the scoping process for future Panel Reviews 

Ongoing 

Using short video clips, develop a suite 
of case studies whereby councillors can 
share examples of the work they have 
been doing to engage and involve 
residents in order to build of library of 
best practice. 

The Communications Manager and Policy Manager will bring 
forward proposals to the Member and Community Development 
working group. 

January 2019 

Explore further options around digital 
training and support for councillors to 
enable them to engage with a wider 
audience. 

To be developed in conjunction with the new Communications 
Strategy

Spring  2019 

Develop some in-house pilot training as 
a way to better understand the breadth 
and depth of digital skills training 
councillors require

To be developed in conjunction with the new Communications 
Strategy

Spring  2019

T
est V

alley B
orough C

ouncil - O
verview

 and S
crutiny C

om
m

ittee - 17 O
ctober 2018

P
age 18



Undertake further research into how the 
Council and Councillors can utilise a 
range of digital platforms to 
communicate, engage and gain 
feedback from the public around key 
issues.  

To be developed in conjunction with the new Communications 
Strategy

Spring 2019

Pilot the use of blogs and videos 
through Romsey Future and Andover 
Vision as a way to engage and inform 
residents and partners on the progress 
being made through these projects. 

Utilising both the Romsey Future and Andover Vision websites, the 
use of videos will be trialled to promote key projects being taken 
forward. 

December 2018 
onwards 

T
est V

alley B
orough C

ouncil - O
verview

 and S
crutiny C

om
m

ittee - 17 O
ctober 2018

P
age 19



Programme of Work for the
Overview & Scrutiny Committee

Report of Head of Legal and Democratic Services

Recommended:
The Committee is requested to:

1. Review the outcomes on the work programme and recommendations 
update.

2. Approve the future work programme.

SUMMARY: 

 The purpose of this report is to enable members to keep the Committee’s future 
work programme and recommendations update under review.

1. Background

1.1 The OSCOM Work Programme is presented at Annex 1 for review and 
approval.  

1.2 The OSCOM Task and Finish Panels update is presented at Annex 2 for the 
Committee’s review and comments.  

1.3 The Cabinet Work Programme is attached at Annex 3 for the Committee to 
consider.

Background Papers (Local Government Act 1972 Section 100D)
None

Confidentiality  

It is considered that this report does not contain exempt information within the 
meaning of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended, and can 
be made public.

No of Annexes: 3

Author: Caroline Lovelock Ext: 8014

File Ref:

Report to: Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee

Date: 17 October 2018

Test Valley Borough Council - Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 17 October 2018

Page 20

ITEM 12



*  Scrutiny Indicator Key:
1  :  Holding to Account 2  :  Performance Management 3  :  Policy Review 4  :  Policy Development 5  :  External Scrutiny

ANNEX 1

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME 2018/19

*Scrutiny 
Indicator

Requested by Purpose of Report
(Responsible Officer/ Member)

17 OCTOBER (ANDOVER)
Round Table Discussion on 
the Corporate Plan

3 Committee To consider the emerging outcomes from the public engagement work. (Policy Manager)

Drug prevention services in the 
Borough

3 Cllr C Dowden To understand the multi agency support available in the borough for people with drug dependency 
(Community Engagement Manager) (20 mins)

Annual Audit Report 2 Committee To receive the report
(Head of Finance/Auditor Manager) (20 mins)

Report back on proposals from 
the Public Involvement Panel

3 Committee Report back on the Public Involvement Panel’s recommendations following review by the Member 
and Community Development Group. (Policy Manager) (20 mins)

14 NOVEMBER (ANDOVER)
Round Table Discussion on 
the Corporate Plan

3 Committee To consider the outcomes of the emerging evidence gathered by the public engagement work. 
(Policy Manager)

Budget Panel Report Draft 
Budget and Fees and Charges

4 Committee To consider the draft Budget Panel report
(Vice Chairman) (20 mins)

12 DECEMBER (ROMSEY)
Update on the Economic 
Development Action plan

2 Committee Look at Economy policy and results (Economic Development Officer) (20 mins)

21 JANUARY (ROMSEY)
Budget Strategy Update 1 Committee To check the results of the Budget Panel chaired by the Vice Chairman and make sure all is 

satisfactory (Vice-Chairman) (20 mins)

T
est V

alley B
orough C

ouncil - O
verview

 and S
crutiny C

om
m

ittee - 17 O
ctober 2018

P
age 21



*  Scrutiny Indicator Key:
1  :  Holding to Account 2  :  Performance Management 3  :  Policy Review 4  :  Policy Development 5  :  External Scrutiny

BRIEFING NOTES

2017 Date Circulated

The use of the Rendezvous in Andover (Head of Estates) 6 April 2017

March Car Park Management (Engineering and Transport Manager)
Affordable Housing Update (Head of Housing and Environmental Health)

18 May 2017
3 March 2017

April Ways in which the vibrancy of the Town Centre can be measured (David Gleave, Economic 
Development Manager)

31 March 2017

June Risk Management (Principal Auditor)
Equalities Scheme (Corporate Director)
Art Strategy including Public Art Commissions (Head of Community and Leisure)

12 June 2017

25 July 2017

July The role of Licensing in Test Valley (Licensing Manager) 25 July 2017

August Supporting families update (Community Manager)
Crime and Disorder update (Community Engagement Manager – Community Safety)

12 June 2017
13 June 2017

November Elections discussion
Parking discussion (confidential)
Flytipping discussion

8 November 2017
8 November 2017
16 November 2017

2018

March Affordable Housing Update (Head of Housing and Environmental Health) 19 March 2018

May Safeguarding Children & Vulnerable Adults (Community Engagement Manager) 22 May 2018

June Test Valley Partnership Annual Review (Policy Manager)
Risk Management (Principal Auditor) 31 July 2018

T
est V

alley B
orough C

ouncil - O
verview

 and S
crutiny C

om
m

ittee - 17 O
ctober 2018

P
age 22



*  Scrutiny Indicator Key:
1  :  Holding to Account 2  :  Performance Management 3  :  Policy Review 4  :  Policy Development 5  :  External Scrutiny

2019
February Contribute and be part of a strong community. Review of Corporate Plan Objective (Andy Ferrier)
Date to be agreed

Hampshire County Waste Strategy

Review of Community Toilet Scheme

T
est V

alley B
orough C

ouncil - O
verview

 and S
crutiny C

om
m

ittee - 17 O
ctober 2018

P
age 23



Panel Lead Member Progress Update Report back to 
OSCOM

Completed Panels

Community Safety Panel Councillor Baverstock Phase 1 complete Phase 2 final report in July 3 August 2016

Review of Call In Process Councillor C Dowden Recommendations to Cabinet on 19 April 2017 and Council 
agreed recommendations on 6 September 2017.

Communications and Procurement Panel Councillor J Cockaday Considered on 25 October 2017 recommendations to Cabinet 
agreed on 18 November 2017

Public Involvement Panel Councillor Baverstock

Scoping document agreed by OSCOM on 20 September 2017

Report back

Recommendation to Cabinet

Findings of the Panel referred to the Member and Community 
Development working group to develop proposals further and to 
report back to OSCOM with proposed actions for onward 
submission to Cabinet

21 March 2018

18 April 2018

Ongoing Panels

Planning Panel Councillor Hibberd
Scoping template agreed
Report back 
Panel’s final report to OSCOM
Recommendations considered by Cabinet 

22 November 2017
25 July 2018
19 September 2018
10 October 2018

T
est V

alley B
orough C

ouncil - O
verview

 and S
crutiny C

om
m

ittee - 17 O
ctober 2018

P
age 24



Council Tax Support Scheme Councillor Baverstock

Meeting to be arranged early January to review the options for 
the Council Tax Support Scheme 2019/2020

Report back

Recommendation to Cabinet on options 5, 6 and 7

Cabinet agreed to undertake consultations on options 5, 6 and 
7 with a slight amendment to option 5

Panel to reconvene to consider the results of the consultation. 

21 March 2018

18 April 2018

Parking (Car Park and Streets) Panel Councillor Baverstock First meeting held on 6 July to agree scoping template

Scoping template agreed by OSCOM 19 September 2018

T
est V

alley B
orough C

ouncil - O
verview

 and S
crutiny C

om
m

ittee - 17 O
ctober 2018

P
age 25


	Agenda
	9 The Annual Internal Audit Report 2017- 18
	10 Drug prevention services in the Test Valley
	11 Public Involvement Panel Final Report
	Annex 1 Public Involvement Action Plan

	12 Work Programme Report
	Work Programme - Annex 1
	Work Programme - Annex 2


